
Finance Committee  
September 24, 2025 | 10:00 am – 11:30 am 

 
 

  
Onsite: 

Greater Portland Transit District 
 114 Valley Street, Conference Room A | Portland, ME 04102 

 
Remote: 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85631151700?pwd=yrEg1G6gcM33iqD4CPMY1eIeeyLgsb.1 

Passcode: 101710 | Webinar ID: 856 3115 1700 
    Phone: (646) 558-8656| Telephone participants: *9 to raise hand, *6 to unmute 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

 

AGENDA ITEM PRESENTER ACTION or 
INFORMATION 

1. Call Meeting to Order (10:00) Paul Bradbury, 
Committee Chair 

N/A 

2. Public Comment (10:00-10:05) 
The Finance Committee welcomes public comment. For items 
NOT listed on this agenda, the chair will recognize speakers at 
this point on the agenda. For items on the agenda, the chair will 
recognize public comment following the staff presentation. 
There is a 3-minute time limit per speaker. 

Paul Bradbury, 
Committee Chair 

Information 

3. Approval of Meeting Minutes (10:00-10:05) 
The committee will be asked to approve minutes from the 
August 13, 2025 meeting of the Finance Committee. 

Paul Bradbury, 
Committee Chair 

ACTION 

4. Micro Transit Cost Allocation (10:05-10:30) 
Staff will review the operating cost of microtransit as it 
compares to fixed route bus service and how differences in 
these the two services could be accounted for in Metro’s 2026 
Operating Budget. 

Shelly Brooks, 
Chief Financial 
Officer 

Discussion 

5. 2026 Operating Budget Draft (10:30 – 11:25) 
Staff will present the draft 2026 Operating budget.  

Shelly Brooks, 
Chief Financial 
Officer 

Information 

6. Future Agenda Items (11:25-11:30) 
Committee members may request future agenda items.   
• Workplan Development (Strategic Plan)- Ongoing 
• Review Financal Policies (Fund Balance/Procurement)- TBD 
• Long Range Financial Forecasting- Ongoing 

Paul Bradbury, 
Committee Chair 

Information 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85631151700?pwd=yrEg1G6gcM33iqD4CPMY1eIeeyLgsb.1


 
 

2 
 

• Electric Buses- KPIs and Cost Analysis- TBD 
• Microtransit Cost Analysis- September/October 2025 
• Federal and State Funding Outlook- Ongoing 

7.  Upcoming Meetings (11:25-11:30) 
• Executive Committee – September 24, 2025 at 3:30 pm 
• Finance Committee – October 8, 2025 at 4:00 pm 
• Finance Committee – October 15, 2025 at 4:00 pm 
• Board of Directors – October 23, 2025 at 4:00 pm 
• Mkt/Coms Committee – November 12, 2025 at 3:00 pm 
• Plan/Ops Committee – November 19, 2025 at 10:30 am 
• Advocacy Committee – November 19, 2025 at 4:30 pm 

Paul Bradbury, 
Committee Chair 

Information 

9. Adjournment (11:30) Paul Bradbury, 
Committee Chair 

ACTION 

 
As of November 9, 2022 Greater Portland METRO is holding meetings of the Board of Directors (and its 
committees) in hybrid format, both in person at METRO’s offices and via webinar. The remote portions of all 
meetings are conducted in accordance with the requirements of METRO’s Remote Participation Policy (adopted 
August 25, 2022) as well as LD 1772, PL 2022 Ch. 666, and 1 MRSA Chapter 13, Subchapter 1. 
 
 

https://gpmetro.org/DocumentCenter/View/1424


 
Greater Portland Metro Finance Committee 

Wednesday, August 13, 2025 4:00pm 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes: 

Member: Municipality: Role: Status: 
Paul Bradbury Portland Chair Present 
Josh Reny South Portland Vice Chair Present 
Merrill Barter Falmouth Member Present 
Tom Poirier 
Ed Suslovic 

Gorham 
Portland 

Member 
Non-voting Attendee 

Present 
Present 

 
Staff Present Identified Members of the Public 

Shelly Brooks – Chief Financial Officer Portland Chamber of Commerce 
  

 

I. With a Quorum in place, this meeting was called to Order By: Paul Bradbury at: 4:00 
pm 

 
II. Public Forum:  

No members of public requested to speak. 
 

III. Approval of April 2, 2025 Draft Meeting Minutes: 
Josh Reny motioned, seconded by Merrill Barter to approve the June 4, 2025 meeting minutes. 
After a roll call of the members present, it was unanimously approved. 
 

IV. 2026 Budget Process Overview: 
Shelly Brooks presented the 2026 budget process overview and timeline, along with suggestions 
for 3 Finance Committee meetings leading up to the Board of Director’s final approval of the 
2026 at the October 23, 2025 meeting. Staff will poll the committee members for final meeting 
date for September, and calendar invites will be sent for the October 8th @ 4pm and October 
15th @ 4pm meetings. 
 

V. Local Match Policy: 
Shelly Brooks presented a draft CIP Local Match policy for review and approval by the 
committee. Shelly explained the policy allows staff to re-allocate local match 
contributions to capital projects that are approved in the 5-year CIP. Josh Reny 
requested an amendment to the policy to require communication as informational 
items of such re-allocations to the Finance Committee and the Board of Directors at 



their meetings following the re-allocation. Josh Reny motioned, seconded by Tom Poirier to 
approve the Local Match Policy. After a roll call of the members present, it was unanimously 
approved. The policy will be presented to the Executive Committee for approval on August 27, 
2025. 
 

VI. Committee Workplan Development:  
The committee a began the discussion of a workplan of the goals and strategic priorities of the 
Finance Committee from the April 2nd meeting.  
Staff will work to develop a framework for financial best practices for the committee’s review.  
 
1. Plan for Long Term Financial Sustainability 

i. Achieving the industry benchmark by increasing fare recovery to 25% 
I. The committee requested analysis of fare increases on ridership, best 

practices, indexing, etc. Staff will work to gather information for 
analysis- and will likely begin the analysis in Planning and Operations 
Committee, before moving back to the Finance Committee to review 
long term financial impacts of changes being considered.  

ii. Develop, maintain and monitor long-term financial forecast 
iii. Maintain clean audit reports with no material weaknesses 

I. Staff will work to develop a framework for financial best practices for 
the committee’s review.  
 

iv. Develop long-term plan to achieve targeted Fund Balance 
v. Carefully evaluate service expansion for fiscal sustainability 

 
2. Diversify Revenue Sources 

i. Identify new funding sources 
I. Engage member communities to assist with identifying new funding 

sources 
ii. State operational support advocacy 
iii. Identify new opportunities for Pass Programs 
iv. Evaluate revenue caps, minimum revenue guarantees, and annual contributions for 

route support 
I. KPI’s for pass programs (Planning and Operations Committee) 

v. Increase non-fare miscellaneous revenue  
 

3. Asset Management 
i. Ensure assets are replaced on a coordinated, properly funded schedule  

I. Work to develop a 5-year overall funding strategy of the CIP 
ii. Plan for major capital expenses and budget accordingly 

I. Ed Suslovic began a discussion of a facility task force of the BOD for the 
Facility Master Plan project. 

 
VII. Future Agenda Items:  

• Goal Setting/Workplan Development (Strategic Plan)- Ongoing 



• Review Financial Policies (Fund Balance/Procurement)- TBD 
• Long Range Financial Forecasting- Ongoing 
• Electric Buses- KPIs and Cost Analysis- TBD 
• Microtransit Cost Analysis- Sept/Oct 2025 with 2026 Budget 
• Federal and State Funding Outlook- Ongoing 

 
VIII. Upcoming Meetings:  

• Board of Directors – June 26, 2025 at 4:00 pm 
• Finance Committee- (Tentative) September 10, 2025 at 4:00 pm- Will be Rescheduled after 

Availability Poll 
• Market/Coms Committee – September 10, 2025 at 3:00 pm 
• Plan/Ops Committee – August 20, 2025 at 10:30 am 
• Advocacy Committee – August 20, 2025 at 4:30 pm 
• Executive Committee – August 27, 2025 at 3:30 pm 

 
IX. Adjournment: Tom Poirier motioned, Merrill Barter seconded. Paul Bradbury 

adjourned the meeting at 5:05 PM. 



 

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 4 
 

 

 
DATE  
September 24, 2025 

 
SUBJECT 
Evaluate Microtransit Rate for Metro’s Operating Budget 
 
PURPOSE 
To present a methodology for allocating expenses for microtransit service to Metro member 
communities. 
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS 
In October 2023 Metro’s Board of Directors adopted a cost/revenue allocation formula used to 
determine local assessments for Metro member communities. This formula is used to allocate 
revenue and expenses to each member community. See Attachment A for summary explanation 
of cost allocation formula.  
 
When the formula was adopted Metro only operated fixed route bus service. In January of 2025, 
Metro introduced microtransit service in Falmouth. During the 2025 budget year this new service 
was 100% funded by ARPA Grant funding. In 2026, the ARPA grant funding will be exhausted. This 
will require the microtransit to be folded into Metro’s regular operating budget. 
 
Due to the operating profile of microtransit being significantly different than fixed route bus 
service, staff compared the variable cost expenses of both services. Figure 1 represents most 
expenses associated with microtransit for the first eight months of operation. The figure does 
not include parts and maintenance costs as these costs are not currently available for reporting 
in an expense-based format. Maintenance staff report that Metro’s new microtransit vehicle has 
not required any repairs to date and the only maintenance expenses associated with the vehicle 
are related to regular preventative maintenance. 
 

 



 
 

2 
 

 Figure 1 – Microtransit expenses (Jan25-Aug25)

 
 
Eight-month average variable cost for microtransit – $44.42 
Metro’s 2025 variable rate for fixed route bus service – $85.09 
Microtransit percentage of fixed route variable rate – 52.2% 
 
Based on the significant difference in expenses between the cost to operate microtransit and the 
cost to operate fixed route transit it would be justified that the expenses for these services be 
charged to Metro member communities at different rates. Similarly, revenues (with the 
exception of fare revenue) would also be applied at a reduced rate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact to Metro’s overall budget, however there will be a shifting of revenue 
and expenses between member communities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
This item is for first review by the Finance Committee. If the Committee would like to proceed 
with this evaluation, staff would return with a recommended procedure for allocating revenue 
and expenses for microtransit service at the Committee’s next meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
Attachment A – Summary of Cost Allocation Formula 
 
 
CONTACT 
Shelly Brooks, Chief Financial Officer 
207-221-8710  -  sbrooks@gpmetro.org 

Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25
Wages 5,463$       6,474$       8,346$       6,994$       8,643$       6,382$       9,263$       7,441$       
Overtime 2,852$       3,911$       1,469$       2,278$       2,715$       2,162$       3,101$       2,721$       
Bonus 172$           -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
Holiday 516$           532$           -$            -$            272$           532$           -$            -$            
Paid Absences 712$           430$           32$             183$           688$           688$           878$           351$           
Training -$            -$            423$           -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
Benefits 3,629$       3,820$       6,523$       5,148$       5,886$       5,254$       6,187$       5,301$       
Gasoline 937$           879$           976$           963$           953$           1,111$       1,205$       1,238$       
Microtransit App 4,206$       4,205$       2,103$       2,103$       2,103$       2,103$       
Consultant/Misc Supplies 125$           1,538$       24$             2,474$       1,224$       404$           
Total 18,612$     21,789$     19,872$     17,694$     21,260$     18,602$     23,961$     17,455$     
Revenue Hours 436.1 402.9 447.3 429.4 435 431.7 431.9 445.6
Cost per Hour 42.39$       50.26$       44.43$       41.15$       48.87$       37.36$       52.64$       38.27$       

mailto:sbrooks@gpmetro.org


Attachment A 

GP Metro Cost/Revenue Allocation Summary 

 

 

Determine Local Assessments

Determine local assessments by calculating the remaining unfunded expense for each route by juridistional 
revenue hour for each member community

Assign Revenues to Service

Assign remaining federal, state and miscellaneous 
funding proportionally by revenue hour

Assign fare revenue based on average fare and 
ridership per route

Assign Variable Costs to Service

Assign variable costs to each route by mutiplying cost per revenue hour by jurisdictional revenue hours

Determine Variable Cost per Revenue Hour
Divide total variable costs by total revenue hours

Divide Budgeted Expenses into Fixed and Variable Catergories

Assign State/Federal Funding to Fixed Expenses Allocate local match as needed to PM, CIP, debt 
service and fund balance



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

FY 2026 OPERATING BUDGET- Draft 
 
The total operating budget for FY 2026 is $20,808,769, an increase of 8.08% compared to FY 2025. Staff 
continue to work to identify opportunities for savings to close the deficit of $2,006,678. Items presented 
are working drafts/estimates.  
 
Table 1: Total Budget Summary 

 
Major Budget Factors: 

• Base Bus Budget (Expenditures) – Metro currently estimates a $2,067,147 deficit for FY 2026. The FY 2026 
Base Bus Budget is built on transit service levels that are mostly unchanged from FY 2025.  

o Service Improvements – ARPA funded service improvements implemented in May 2024 and 
November 2024 are reported as included in the base budget expenditure numbers. The service 
improvements resulted in a net increase of 4 bus operator positions in 2023, 8 bus operator 
positions in 2024, and 2 non-CLD driver for a total of 75 bus operator positions and 3 non-CDL 
operators as of November 2024.  



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

• Base Bus Budget (Revenues) – revenue estimates include: decreases in fares and miscellaneous revenue 
as well as increases in federal funding. Current municipal funding reflects an overall 5.4% increase, which 
includes a 5% placeholder increase in operating funding and a 17.1% placeholder increase in capital 
funding. The 2026-2030 CIP is still being finalized and may adjust this figure. Staff anticipate a small 
balance of ARPA funding carrying into 2026, which will offset about ¼ year of ARPA related service 
improvements.  

• ADA Paratransit budget is projected to increase based on actual increased ridership in 2025.  

• Lease Property (151 St. John’s Street) – total budget includes the anticipated expenditures and revenues 
associated with lease and operations of the property at 115 St. John’s Street. A projected $60,468 surplus 
in this section can be available to offset a deficit(s) in other sections of the budget.  

 
BASE BUS SERVICE  
For 2026, baseline bus service (including ARPA funded service improvements) will total approximately 
137,403 revenue hours. Table 2 outlines service levels, projected revenue hours and estimated boardings by 
route. Also presented are the boardings per hour statistics which is a basic metric of route performance.  
 
Table 2: 2026 Service Levels and Estimated Ridership 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 3: Base Bus Budget Summary  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
TRANSIT OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 
 
Overview and Staffing 
The mission of the Transit Operations Department is to deliver safe and effective transit service on a daily 
basis in accordance with Metro’s published routes and schedules and provide an excellent rider experience 
across all touchpoints.   
 

• Transit Operations – deliver safe and effective bus operations on a daily basis in accordance with 
Metro’s published routes and schedules while providing an excellent rider experience. 

• Safety-Training – effectively train and prepare new Bus Operators and manage Metro’s agency safety 
plan. 

 
The Operations Department includes the following full-time equivalent (FTE) positions and number of 
employees. Several positions have been reclassified out of the Operations Department for 2026; Information 
Technology will be reported as a separate department budget. Additionally, Customer Service has been 
moved to the Planning and Marketing Department budget. The Safety and Training Manager position has 
been reclassified as the Assistant Transit Operations Manager and finally, two new positions are being 
requested, a Training Supervisor and a Scheduler/Data Analyst.  
 
The Training Supervisor will perform the majority of the “hands on” new and refresher Bus Operator training. 
The Assistant Transit Operations Manager will provide support for the Transit Operations Manager in the 
areas of; dispatch oversight, operations, ITS systems and safety. This position is budgeted for the full year in 
2026.  
 
The Scheduler/Data Analyst position will primarily gather data and provide reports on a variety of KPIs. This 
position will make recommendations for schedule adjustments to improve on-time performance and will 
produce Metro’s operator and customer facing schedules. This position is budgeted for ½ year in 2026.  
 
Table 4: Transit Operations Department Staffing  
 

  *Staffing is based on total position count, not amount budgeted. 

 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 5: Transit Operations Department Budget 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Wages Increase in regular wages is driven mainly by the COLA increase (3% Jan 1, 2% July 1) in 
base wages and step increases as required by the Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
ATU and the Non-Union Salary Plan approved by the Board of Directors in 2022. Wages 
related to service improvement are included in this line as well. Staff are estimating the 
same COLA for non-union staff.   

2 New Positions- Wages This amount reflects the request for two new positions. One, full year, Training 
Supervisor, and one, ½ year Scheduler/Data Analyst.   

3 Overtime Overtime increase is related to the 3% COLA as required by the CBA. Additionally, this 
includes an addition of Overtime expected for Micro Transit drivers. 

4 Holiday Pay Increase is related to COLA as required by the CBA. Additionally, 2025 projection 
estimates to be slightly over budget on this line, so increase is based on 2025 projection 
and not 2025 budget.  

5 Health Insurance Health Insurance is estimated at an increase of 11% over 2025 budgeted amount. 

6 HRA Payments Historically, HRA payments were budgeted fully in Operations, as this department 
carried the majority of the expenses, and allocated to the departments based on actual 
expenditures. For 2026, we are budgeting an amount for each department. For 2026, 
Operations is showing a slight decrease, but this is based on the allocation to other 
departments. Overall, HRA Payments requested increase is about 20%, which is based 
on historical usage and added staff. 

7 Disability Insurance Metro’s broker for Disability Insurance was able to negotiate a rate reduction on STD 
benefits only, which is contributed to the addition of MEPFML benefits, starting in 
2026. The Oct 2025 renewal includes a decrease in the STD rate, and no change in the 
rate for LTD benefits.   

8 Workers Compensation Workers Compensation expenditures have historically averaged around 2.75% of 
wages. Staff are using this as an estimate, and will update once initial discussions for 
2026 policy renewals begin. 

9 Unemployment Metro is self-insured for unemployment benefits, therefore, only has expenditures 
when claims are filed. So far, 2025 has been minimal. Staff have adjusted the budget 
request downward based on 2025 actuals.   

10 New Positions- Benefits This amount reflects an estimate of benefit expenditures for new positions. Staff are 
using 45% of wages as an estimate, which is in line with actual overall benefit costs 
related to wages.  

11 Minor Equipment Staff have adjusted this request downward, based on historical usage. 

12 Conference and Travel Increased based on need for additional training for Operations staff and managers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

7 | P a g e  
 

 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

Overview and Staffing 
The mission of the Information Technology Department is to provide secure, reliable, and innovative 
technology solutions that support Metro’s operations, enhance the rider experience, and safeguard agency 
data and systems. The department ensures the availability and integrity of critical technology 
infrastructure, applications, and digital services. 

• Systems & Infrastructure – Maintain Metro’s hardware, software, and network infrastructure to 
ensure availability, operability, and business continuity. 

• Cybersecurity – Protect agency systems, data, and digital assets through proactive monitoring, risk 
management, and compliance with security standards. 

• Application Support – Manage, update, and support agency business systems, including financial, 
operational, and customer-facing platforms. 

• Innovation & Data – Advance technology initiatives, data management, and analytics to improve 
decision-making, service delivery, and rider experience. 

 
The Information Technology Department includes the following full-time equivalent (FTE) positions and 
number of employees. No additional positions or employees are proposed.  
 
Table 6: Information Technology Department Staffing  
 

 
*Staffing is based on total position count, not amount budgeted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

8 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 7: Information Technology Department Budget 
 

 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Wages Increase in regular wages is driven mainly by the COLA increase (3% Jan 1, 2% July 1) in 
base wages and step increases as required by the Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
ATU and the Non-Union Salary Plan approved by the Board of Directors in 2022. Wages 
related to service improvement are included in this line as well. Staff are estimating the 
same COLA for non-union staff.   

2 Health Insurance Health Insurance is estimated at an increase of 11% over 2025 budgeted amount. 

3 HRA Payments Historically, HRA payments were budgeted fully in Operations, as this department 
carried the majority of the expenses, and allocated to the departments based on actual 
expenditures. For 2026, we are budgeting an amount for each department. Overall, 
HRA Payments requested increase is about 20%, which is based on historical usage and 
added staff. 

 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

9 | P a g e  
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

4 Disability Insurance Metro’s broker for Disability Insurance was able to negotiate a rate reduction on STD 
benefits only, which is contributed to the addition of MEPFML benefits, starting in 
2026. The Oct 2025 renewal includes a decrease in the STD rate, and no change in the 
rate for LTD benefits.   

5 Workers Compensation Workers Compensation expenditures have historically averaged around 2.75% of 
wages. Staff are using this as an estimate, and will update once initial discussions for 
2025 policy renewals begin. 

6 Technology Services This line reflects all of Metro’s Technology Services agreements and miscellaneous 
technology fees. Table 8 provides the detail of the items covered by this line. The 
increase is attributed mostly to new SaaS agreements for CAD/AVL, Timekeeping and 
microtransit.   

7 IT Supplies Includes items like keyboards, mice, wires, etc. Increase is related to anticipation of 
replacements of aging equipment, along with normal equipment failure replacements.  

8 Minor Equipment Includes items like replacement monitors, docks, etc. Increase is related to anticipation 
of replacements of aging equipment.  

 
Table 8: Technology Services Detail 

 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

10 | P a g e  
 

 
FLEET & FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 
 
Overview and Staffing 
The mission of the Fleet and Facilities Maintenance Department is to maintain the agency’s physical assets 
in a state of good repair and ensure availability to deliver and support safe and effective transit services. 
This department maintains 49 transit buses, 10 support vehicles, 3 facilities and 500+ bus stops including 
50+ bus shelters and other amenities. The following two divisions make up this department:   
 

• Fleet Maintenance – deliver safe and effective bus operations on a daily basis in accordance with 
Metro’s published routes and schedules while providing an excellent rider experience. 

• Facilities Maintenance – effectively train and prepare new Bus Operators and manage Metro’s 
agency safety plan. 

The Fleet-Facilities Maintenance Department includes the following full-time equivalent (FTE) positions and 
number of employees. An additional full-time Mechanic is requested for ½ year 2026, which also assumes 
elimination of the part-time Mechanic at ½ year.  
 
Table 9: Maintenance Department Staffing  
 

 
*Staffing is based on total position count, not amount budgeted. 

 
Table 10: Maintenance Department Budget 
 

 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

11 | P a g e  
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Wages Increase in regular wages is driven mainly by the COLA increase (3% Jan 1, 2% July 
1) in base wages and step increases as required by the Collective Bargaining 
Agreement with ATU and the Non-Union Salary Plan approved by the Board of 
Directors in 2022. Wages related to service improvement are included in this line as 
well. Staff are estimating the same COLA for non-union staff.   

2 New Positions- Wages This amount reflects the request for one new position. One, ½ year Mechanic II, and 
also assuming removal of the one Part-time Mechanic II position.   

3 Overtime Increase in Overtime is related to staffing coverage of long-term absences. 2025 
amounts are projected to be over budget for same reasons.  

4 Health Insurance Health Insurance is estimated at an increase of 11% over 2025 budgeted amount. 

5 HRA Payments Historically, HRA payments were budgeted fully in Operations, as this department 
carried the majority of the expenses, and allocated to the departments based on 
actual expenditures. For 2026, we are budgeting an amount for each department. 
Overall, HRA Payments requested increase is about 20%, which is based on 
historical usage and added staff. 

6 Disability Insurance Metro’s broker for Disability Insurance was able to negotiate a rate reduction on 
STD benefits only, which is contributed to the addition of MEPFML benefits, starting 
in 2026. The Oct 2025 renewal includes a decrease in the STD rate, and no change 
in the rate for LTD benefits.   

7 Workers Compensation Workers Compensation expenditures have historically averaged around 2.75% of 
wages. Staff are using this as an estimate, and will update once initial discussions 
for 2025 policy renewals begin. 

8 New Positions- Benefits This amount reflects an estimate of benefit expenditures for new positions. Staff 
are using 45% of wages as an estimate, which is in line with actual overall benefit 
costs related to wages. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

12 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 11: Department Budgets- Maintenance, continued 
 

 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

9 Architecture & 
Engineering 
Services 

Historically no expenses allocated to this line. Reduced slightly based on non-usage.  

10 Other 
Contracted 
Services 

Expenditures related to contract service for Maintenance staff training. Increased based on 
additional training sessions planned in 2026. 

11 Maintenance 
Software 

Covers maintenance software licensing for Maintenance computers. Increase is related to 
inventory system addition for 2026, 

12 Diesel Fuel By purchasing diesel futures, Staff was able to secure a favorable rate for METRO’s 25-26 
diesel contract of $2.37/gal. The current contract will expire late summer of 2026, and will 
secure a new contract. Estimates for fuel purchases beyond contract expiration are currently 
estimated at an increased contract rate of $2.55/gal. 

13 Gasoline Increase of Gasoline for Micro Transit revenue vehicles. 2025 was estimated with no 
historical data, and is estimated to be over budget.  

14 Electricity Fuel Increase based on assumption of additional usage in 2026. 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

13 | P a g e  
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

15 Tires and Tubes Increase based on assumptions of price increases for 2026, as well as additional vehicle tires 
to purchase/maintain.  

16 Servicing & 
Fueling Supplies 

2025 Projection estimates are over 2025 budgeted amount. Increase for 2026 based on this 
overage, and slight pricing increases.  

17 Building 
Supplies 

Decreased budget request for 2026 based on historical spending being under budgeted 
amounts.  

18 Minor 
Equipment 

Increased budget request based on anticipated need for additional small equipment for shop 
use.  

19 Other Supplies Decreased budget request for 2026 based on historical spending being under budgeted 
amounts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

14 | P a g e  
 

 
PLANNING, MARKETING and CUSTOMER SERVICE 

Overview and Staffing 
The mission of the Planning, Marketing, and Customer Service Department is to ensure Metro’s services 
remain responsive to community needs by planning future transit improvements, engaging riders and 
stakeholders, and providing clear, accessible information and assistance. The department advances Metro’s 
visibility, ridership, and rider satisfaction through effective service planning, communications, and customer 
support. 

• Planning – Develop and evaluate service plans, monitor system performance, and recommend 
improvements to ensure Metro’s network remains efficient, effective, and aligned with community 
needs. 

• Marketing & Communications – Promote Metro’s services through strategic communications, 
branding, outreach, and public engagement to build awareness, grow ridership, and strengthen 
community connections. 

• Customer Service – Provide fare media sales, trip planning assistance, and responsive support to 
riders, partners, and the public across multiple communication channels. 

 
The Planning, Marketing and Customer Service Department includes the following full-time equivalent (FTE) 
positions and number of employees. No additional positions or employees are proposed.  
 
Table 12: Planning, Marketing and Customer Service Staffing  
 

 
*Staffing is based on total position count, not amount budgeted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

15 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 13: Planning, Marketing and Customer Service Department Budget  
 

 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Wages Increase in regular wages is driven mainly by the COLA increase (3% Jan 1, 2% July 1) in base 
wages and step increases as required by the Collective Bargaining Agreement with ATU and 
the Non-Union Salary Plan approved by the Board of Directors in 2022. Wages related to 
service improvement are included in this line as well. Staff are estimating the same COLA for 
non-union staff.   
Additionally, Customer Service staff have been moved to the Planning and Marketing 
Department, accounting for the majority of the increase is wages seen here. There are several 
benefit lines that are showing significant increases based on this move as well.  
 

2 Health 
Insurance 

Health Insurance is estimated at an increase of 11% over 2025 budgeted amount. 

3 HRA Payments Historically, HRA payments were budgeted fully in Operations, as this department carried the 
majority of the expenses, and allocated to the departments based on actual expenditures. For 
2026, we are budgeting an amount for each department. Overall, HRA Payments requested 
increase is about 20%, which is based on historical usage and added staff. 

4 Disability 
Insurance 

Metro’s broker for Disability Insurance was able to negotiate a rate reduction on STD benefits 
only, which is contributed to the addition of MEPFML benefits, starting in 2026. The Oct 2025 
renewal includes a decrease in the STD rate, and no change in the rate for LTD benefits.   

5 Workers 
Compensation 

Workers Compensation expenditures have historically averaged around 2.75% of wages. Staff 
are using this as an estimate, and will update once initial discussions for 2025 policy renewals 
begin. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

16 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 14: Planning, Marketing and Customer Service Department Budget, continued 
 

 
 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

5 Other Contracted 
Services 

Increase is related to addition of $50,000 for on-call engineering support related to service 
expansions and bus stops.  

6 Fare Media This line was moved from Operations, along with other Customer Service expenditure 
lines. This amount reflects a small decrease from 2025.  

7 Supplies Promotion Increased based on historical spending for supplies needed for promotion. 

8  Phone/Cell/Internet Increase is related to the addition of Customer Service staff members to this department.  

9 Dues, Subscriptions 
and Certifications 

Increase is related to the anticipation of increases in dues related to current memberships.  

10  Conferences and 
Travel 

Increase is related to the addition of Customer Service staff members to this department, 
and additional conference attendance planned for 2026. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

17 | P a g e  
 

 
ADMINISTRATION 

Overview and Staffing 
The mission of the Administration Department is to provide strategic leadership and essential business 
functions that ensure Metro operates effectively, responsibly, and in alignment with organizational goals. 
The department supports the District through financial stewardship, human resource management, and 
advocacy and executive leadership. 

• Finance – Manage the District’s financial resources through budgeting, accounting, reporting, 
grants administration, and long-term financial planning to ensure fiscal responsibility and 
sustainability. 

• Human Resources – Recruit, retain, and support Metro’s workforce through employee relations, 
benefits administration, professional development, and compliance with employment policies and 
regulations. 

• Executive Leadership – Provide organizational leadership, oversight, and policy direction to 
advance Metro’s mission, foster regional partnerships, and ensure accountability to the Board of 
Directors and the community. 

 
The Administration Department includes the following full-time equivalent (FTE) positions and number of 
employees. No additional positions or employees are proposed.  
 
Table 15: Administration Department Staffing  
 

 
*Staffing is based on total position count, not amount budgeted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

18 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 16: Administration Department Budgets 

 

 
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Wages Increase in regular wages is driven mainly by the COLA increase (3% Jan 1, 2% July 1) in base 
wages and step increases as required by the Collective Bargaining Agreement with ATU and 
the Non-Union Salary Plan approved by the Board of Directors in 2022. Wages related to 
service improvement are included in this line as well. Staff are estimating the same COLA for 
non-union staff.   

2 Health 
Insurance 

Health Insurance is estimated at an increase of 11% over 2025 budgeted amount. 

3 HRA Payments Historically, HRA payments were budgeted fully in Operations, as this department carried the 
majority of the expenses, and allocated to the departments based on actual expenditures. For 
2026, we are budgeting an amount for each department. Overall, HRA Payments requested 
increase is about 20%, which is based on historical usage and added staff. 

4 Disability 
Insurance 

Metro’s broker for Disability Insurance was able to negotiate a rate reduction on STD benefits 
only, which is contributed to the addition of MEPFML benefits, starting in 2026. The Oct 2025 
renewal includes a decrease in the STD rate, and no change in the rate for LTD benefits.   

5 Workers 
Compensation 

Workers Compensation expenditures have historically averaged around 2.75% of wages. Staff 
are using this as an estimate, and will update once initial discussions for 2025 policy renewals 
begin. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

19 | P a g e  
 

 
Table 17: Department Budgets- Administration, continued 
 

 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

6 Wellness 
Program 

The increase in this line item reflects increased usage of legal services related to personnel 
and contracting consultation. Staff estimates continued increased usage of legal services in 
2025. 

7 Temporary Help Decreased as no known need for temporary help.  

8  Bank and Credit 
Card Fees 

Increased costs related to credit card processing fees for sales of fare media. Additional costs 
assumed related to open fare payments.  

9 Advertising Increased costs related to advertising for job postings. Staff continue to evaluate 
opportunities for effective alternate methods of advertising. 

10 Other 
Contracted 
Services 

2025 budget included costs associated with non-union compensation analysis, decreased as 
not needed in 2026. 

11 Miscellaneous 
Services 

Increased costs associated with shredding services added in 2025. 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

20 | P a g e  
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

13 Electricity 2025 Projection estimates slightly over budget. Increase bases on 2025 projection and 
estimated price increases. 

14 Phone/Cell/Internet Increase is related to added staff member.  

15 Auto/Liability/Property 
Insurance 

Increased by 8% bases on estimates received from Broker for 2026. 

16 Dues, Subscriptions 
and Certifications 

Increases are related to estimated increases in current dues, and added dues and 
memberships related to additional staff.  

17 Conferences and 
Travel 

Increase is related to the additional staff members to this department, and additional 
conference attendance planned for 2026. 

8 Meals and Hosting Increase is related to estimated pricing increases, as well as planned Board and 
Committee Meetings for 2026. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

21 | P a g e  
 

 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
 
Table 18: Base Bus Budget: Capital 
 

 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Long Term 
Interest 

Interest expense related to Bond payments and interest due. Staff are also assuming a fall 
interest payment due on a new bond related to bus purchases in 20262.  

2 Fund Balance 
Contribution 

One of the goals approved with the 2025 Strategic Plan includes increasing Fund Balance to 
16.6% of budgeted expenses. Increases contribution to work towards achieving that goal.  

3 Capital Items The 2026-2030 CIP is still being finalized and may adjust this figure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

22 | P a g e  
 

 
REVENUE 
 
Table 19: Base Bus Budget: Revenue 
 

 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Fare Revenue Fare revenue for 2025 is projected to be under budget. With ridership trending downward 
so far in 2025, staff have held fare revenue estimates for 2026 at 2025 projected levels, 
while continuing analysis of these trends. Organization route guarantees are increased from 
2025 based on the contract with USM and the addition of BIW.  

2 Advertising Advertising revenue is projected to be under budget for 2025. Staff are meeting with 
Metro’s advertising vendor ATA Outdoor in the coming weeks to discuss 2025 projections 
and estimates for 2026.  

3 Vehicle 
Maintenance 
Services 

Staff are reducing revenue estimated related to sales of maintenance services based on 
historical downward trends on this revenue item.   

4 Reimbursements 
for Auto Fare Fees 

Reimbursements of Autofare fees is being adjusted downward. For 2025, the estimate 
included South Portland in error, which is being corrected for 2026.  

5 Miscellaneous 
Income 

Misc income estimates reduced based on 2025 projection, which is expected to hold for 
2026 budget year.  



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

23 | P a g e  
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

6 Member Mun. 
Funding 

Amount reflects the local funding from member municipalities to support planned 
programs and operations in FY 2026. Current figure represents a “place-holder” amount 
equal to a 5% increase compared to 2025. 

7 Municipal Funding 
(CIP) 

Amount reflects a “place-holder” amount estimated for municipal funding needed to 
implement the proposed FY 2026-2030 CIP. The CIP remains under development.  

8 State Funding State funding for operations remains unchanged from 2025 to 2026. In 2025, there was a 
small amount of additional funding allocated to operating related to the South Portland Bus 
Service merger costs that is not recurring for 2026, therefore, showing a small decrease.  

9 Federal 5307 
(Operating) 

Amount reflects a 2% increase in Federal 5307 formula funding for operations for FY 2026.  

10 Federal 5307 
(Preventative 
Maintenance) 

Staff are proposing a higher allocation of 5307 preventative maintenance funding for 2026. 
This funding source requires a 20% match vs. a 50% match for operating funds, and there 
are adequate expenditures to support this amount of request.  

11 Federal ARPA 
(Service 
Improvements) 

Estimates ARPA Act funding remaining for FY 2026 service improvements to be about a ¼ 
year.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

24 | P a g e  
 

 
ADA PARATRANSIT 
 
Table 20: ADA Paratransit Budget 
 

 
 

Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Contracted Serv. Metro has a contract with the Regional Transportation Program (RTP) to provide 
complementary ADA Paratransit services. Metro’s cost is based on a negotiated net cost per 
trip boardings, which was increased in 2025 and contracted to increase in 2026.  Ridership has 
been increasing in 2025. For FY 2026, staff are assuming ridership continues to increase.  

2 Mun. Funding Municipalities are billed directly for 20% of the actual cost of ADA paratransit trips that 
originate in their jurisdictions.  

3 Federal Funding 
(5307) 

Metro receives federal funding to cover 80% of the cost of ADA paratransit.  

 
Table 21: ADA Paratransit Ridership: 2022-2024 
 

 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

25 | P a g e  
 

 
115 ST. JOHN’S Property 

 
Table 22: 115 St. John’s Street Property 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Greater Portland Transit District:  
FY 2026 Operating and Capital Budget- Draft 
 

26 | P a g e  
 

 
Note # Line Item Explanation 

1 Service-Fees Anticipated services and maintenance expenses for building.   

2 Utilities Utilities have been transferred to sub-tenant upon occupancy in 2022. 

3 Rental Fees This figure represents the base lease cost and taxes for FY 2026. 

4 CAM Charges Based on 2025 actual, increased by 5% estimate. 

5 Insurance Based on 2025 actual, increased by 10% estimate.  

6 Other Revenue Anticipated revenue from sub-leasing entire building. 

7 Mun. Funding Municipal funding approved by the Board of Directors in July 2021. 

8 State Funding Funding committed to Metro by the Maine Department of Transportation. 15% decrease from 
2025 funding amount. This is the last year of committed funding for this project from MDOT. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Metro Finance Committee Agenda 09-24-2025
	Item 3- Finance Committee Meeting Notes 08-13-2025 Draft
	Item 4- Microtransit rate
	Item 4 - Attachment A - Cost Allocation Model Diagram
	Item 5- FY 2026 Draft Operating Budget Report

